
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA  
September 17, 2024 

12:00 p.m. CityPlace Building  
 

A. Call Meeting to Order 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

C. Approval of Minutes – August 20, 2024 
 

D. Public Comments 
 

E. Local Labor Monitoring Report – August – Kevin Loewke  
 

F. Local Labor Exemptions Report – August 
 
G. Financial Report – August - Gregg Genovese  

 
H. Applications for Consideration  

 
I. Project Modifications  

 
1. 20 Fairwood Road Associates, LLC/The Collegiate Rochester, LLC – Assumption  
2. The Marketplace – PILOT Modification  

 
J. Executive Director – Discussion Items 

- Monroe 2–Orleans BOCES CDL-B program Workforce Development Fund – Increase 
Request 

- Camp Good Days and Special Times, Courage Bowl Event – Marketing Request 
- Genesee Country Village & Museum, Agricultural Fair - Marketing Request  
- Rochester Downtown Development Corporation – Funding Reallocation  
- Mpower Program – Workforce Development Fund Request  
- Monroe County Finger Lakes Apex Accelerator – Annual Update and Budget Request  
- Database Upgrade Project – Increase Request 
- Dashboard  
 

K. Finance Committee Report – A. Burr 
- Fiduciary & Investment Management Services RFP  

 
L. Compliance Committee Report – A. Burr 

587, LLC - Pilot Termination 
Job Waivers 

 
M. Chair Burr  – Discussion Items 

 
N. Adjourn Meeting 

 
 

Next meeting: Tuesday, October 15, 2024  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 

 
Time & Place: 12:00 p.m. at City Place 
 
Board Present: A. Burr, N. Jones, L. Bolzner, R. King, T. Milne, J. Popli,  J. Alloco 
 
Also Present: A. Liss, R. Finnerty, R. Baranello, Esq., T. Francis, K. Loewke, G. Genovese 
 
Chair Burr called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. and R. King led the board in the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
 
On motion by N. Jones, second by L. Bolzner, all aye, minutes of the July 16, 2024 meeting were 
approved. 

K. Loewke presented the local labor monitoring report for July 2024.  
 
Executive Director Liss presented the local labor exemption report for July 2024, on behalf of B. 
Lafountain 
 
G. Genovese presented the financial report for July 2024. T. Milne questioned how the financial report 
tracks the interest income earned on the investments. G. Genovese stated the interest goes back into cash 
account. T. Milne asked for a report to track the interest income earned on the investments. T. Milne 
stated that he would also like to see the fiduciary insurance policy.  
 
Gleason Corporation  
The Gleason Corporation proposes the renovation of its 700,000 sq ft building originally built in the early 
1900s in the City of Rochester. This project involves major plant reconfiguration, improved 
infrastructure, and significant equipment upgrades.  Renovations include HVAC upgrades, roof 
replacement, restoration of factory floors, creation of new office spaces, and restoration of the exterior 
building structure. The renovation of Gleason Works Rochester will allow the company to expand their 
specialized gear services and automation businesses, relocate their plastic gears business from Bergen, 
NY to support growth, and develop a digital manufacturing solutions platform. These investments will 
allow The Gleason Corporation to maintain global competiveness and grow in Rochester while retaining 
jobs that could have gone elsewhere. This $17 million project is expected to create 34 new FTEs over the 
next three years. The applicant is seeking approval of a sales tax exemption. The Benefit/Incentive ratio is 
46:1.   
 
The applicant was represented by Dominick Patriarca, VP Operations & General Manager. The applicant 
confirmed awareness of the local labor policy and that exemptions must be requested 45 days in advance. 
The applicant does not anticipate any local labor exemptions at this time. Ms. Baranello stated that there 
were no comments at the public hearing which was held on August 15, 2024. 
 
The board considered the following resolution: RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF 
MONROE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TO 
APPOINT (i) GLEASON CORPORATION OR A RELATED ENTITY FORMED OR TO BE 
FORMED (COLLECTIVELY, THE "COMPANY") AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE A 
CERTAIN PROJECT; (ii) PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN 



 
 
COMIDA Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2024 
Page 2 
 
THE FORM OF A SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION FOR PURCHASES AND 
RENTALS RELATED TO THE UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT; (iii) AUTHORIZE THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PROJECT AGREEMENT AND RELATED 
DOCUMENTS; AND (iv) MAKE A DETERMINATION WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT 
PURSUANT TO SEQRA (AS DEFINED BELOW).  

On motion by N. Jones, second by L. Bolzner for inducement and final resolution approving a sales tax 
exemption, a roll call vote resulted as follows and the motion carried:  

 
J. Popli Yea J. Alloco Absent 
L. Bolzner Yea R. King Yea 
T. Milne Yea A. Burr Yea 
N. Jones Yea   

 
Executive Director Liss presented the following modifications for consideration: 

Boyatzies, Inc. – Increase and Extension  
Boyatzies, Inc. dba Interstate Battery System of Rochester received board approval in September 2023 for 
a sales tax exemption for fleet upgrades and improvements to their headquarters in the Town of Henrietta. 
The application is now seeking an increase in project costs of $124,132 as the original scope did not 
include necessary equipment upgrades nor an additional truck that needs to be replaced.   The total project 
costs are now $239,332 and the sales tax exemption is now not to exceed $19,147. The applicant is also 
seeking and extension through December 31, 2025 as fleet upgrades are not expected to be made until 
early 2025. 
 
The applicant was represented by Jimmy Boyatzies, General Manager 
 
The board considered the following resolution: RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF MONROE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE "AGENCY") AUTHORIZING (i) ADDITIONAL 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO BOYATZIES, INC. D/B/A INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF 
ROCHESTER (THE "COMPANY") IN AMOUNTS EXCEEDING THE AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY 
APPROVED BY THE AGENCY; (ii) THE PURCHASE OF AN ADDITIONAL VEHICLE; (iii) THE 
EXTENSION OF THE SALES TAX EXEMPTION BENEFIT and (iv) THE EXECUTION OF 
RELATED DOCUMENTS. 
 
On motion by J. Popli, second by N. Jones, all aye, motion carried to approve an increase in project costs 
and an extension of the sales tax exemption through December 31, 2025 
 
J. Alloco arrived. 
 
GS Optics, LLC - Increase  
GS Optics, LLC, a tenant of Germanow-Simon Corp, received board approval in November 2023 for a 
sales tax exemption for the renovation of a 44,000 sq. ft. building in the City of Rochester. The applicant 
is seeking an increase in project costs of $202,000 as the project now includes additional buildout and 
furnishings.  The total project costs are now $877,000 and the sales tax exemption is now not to exceed 
$46,160. 
 
The applicant was represented by Annette Cucchiara, Director of Finance and Ben Vespone, Principal 
Hardware Systems Engineer. 



 
 
COMIDA Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
The board considered the following resolution: RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF MONROE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO GS 
OPTICS LLC IN AMOUNTS EXCEEDING THE AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE 
AGENCY AND THE EXECUTION OF RELATED DOCUMENTS. 
 
On motion by L. Bolzner, second by J. Popli, all aye, motion carried to approve an increase in project 
costs. 
 
Hard Road Realty LLC/EEG Parking LLC - Assumption  
LeFrois Development, LLC constructed a 32,000 square foot building that was leased to the University of 
Rochester in the Town of Webster.  The project was primarily dedicated to Medical and Radiation 
Oncology services featuring a Linear Accelerator Vault, a unique device used in radiation treatments for 
patients with cancer that requires special construction as well as an Ophthalmology office and related 
services. LeFrois provided the building shell and the U of R completed interior renovations. The 
University of Rochester is purchasing the building through a for-profit LLC and will assume the 
LeasePlus PILOT agreement.    
 
The applicant was represented by Mark Wright and Andrea Wright. 
 
The board considered the following resolution: RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF MONROE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE "AGENCY") AUTHORIZING THE ASSIGNMENT 
BY HARD ROAD REALTY LLC OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND DOCUMENTS 
(EACH AS DEFINED BELOW) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT LOCATED AT 875 
HARD ROAD IN THE TOWN OF WEBSTER, NEW YORK, TO EEG PARKING LLC; AND THE 
EXECUTION OF RELATED DOCUMENTS.   
 
On motion by R. King, second by J. Popli, all aye, motion carried to approve the sale of the facility and 
assignment of the real property tax abatement. 
 
The Governance Committee Report was given by J. Popli. The Governance Committee met on July 23, 
2024 and discussed the scope of the potential housing study and advised staff on what to include in the 
RFP.  The committee discussed revising the mission statement to include specific mention of housing. The 
revised mission statement had been distributed to the board. 

On motion by J. Popli, second by N. Jones, all aye, motion carried to approve and accept the amended 
mission statement as presented 

Executive Director Liss introduced Chris Rapp from YAMTEP who will provide a program update and 
review the new request. N. Jones commented that he would like to acquire a follow-up report on 
participants who have completed the program in order to measure the impact of the program. As a 
condition to additional funding, YAMTEP will be required to provide such a report. On motion by L. 
Bolzner, second by R. King, all aye, motion carried to approve the execution and delivery of a contract 
with YAMTEP, Inc to support the workforce development program in an amount not to exceed $520,000 
for one year. 
 
Executive Director Liss introduced Matt Hurlbutt from Greater Rochester Enterprise Economic 
Gardening Program to provide a program update and review the new request. On motion by R. King, 
second by J. Popli, all aye, motion carried to approve the execution and delivery of a contract with the 
Greater Rochester Enterprise for the Economic Gardening program in an amount not to exceed $50,000 
for one year. 



 
 
COMIDA Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
Executive Director Liss discussed the need for the NYSDOT Passenger and Freight Rail Assistance 
Program resolution, which is required by NYS and authorizes COMIDA staff to access the NYS 
Department of Transportation’s Equitable Business Opportunities System. 
 
On motion by R. King, second by J. Alloco, all aye, motion carried to approve the Executive Director, 
Deputy Director, Director of Operations and Project Manager of the Agency to have access to the NYS 
DOT EBO (Equitable Business Opportunities) system.    
 
Executive Director Liss discussed two PILOT Agreement modifications. The first, 1733 Ridge Rd 
LLC(former Medley Mall), will require an amendment to remove a parcel from the PILOT Agreement for 
the recently completed Aldi’s store in the Town of Irondequoit. The second, I-Square, LLC, will require 
an amendment to remove a parcel, add a parcel and adjust the construction milestone provision. footage. 
J. Popli requested that the owner provide information to the board regarding the satisfaction of the 
investment milestone and how, despite that, the owner is unable to achieve the construction milestone.   
Both special PILOT Agreements require approval from the Town and respective School boards, as well as 
COMIDA board, and will be on a future agenda. 
 
Executive Director Liss reviewed the current dashboard.  
 
There being no further business to discuss, on motion by J. Popli, second by N. Jones, all aye, the regular 
meeting of the Board was adjourned at 1:15 p.m.  



 

August 2024 Monthly C.O.M.I.D.A. Report 

September 2nd, 2024 

1. This report covers our site visits between August 1st, 2024 and August 31st, 2024. 

2. During this period Loewke Brill made 61 monthly site visits. 

3. During this period Loewke Brill made “1” Follow up visits. 

4. Loewke Brill checked for residence with 1104 workers. 

5. Of those workers, there were “4” non-compliant. 

a. 0– No proof of residence  

b. 4 – Out of Area 

i. 8/19/24 – 587, LLC – Madrano Plumbing – 4 out of area. Non-

compliant workers still on job site on follow up 8/20/24. 

c. 0 – Invalid ID 

6. There were “0” new COMIDA sign(s) delivered 



 

 

Verified Local Labor Exemption Report 

 

Board Meeting – September 2024 

The following Verified Local Labor Exemption Requests were processed in August 2024 

1. Sibley Redevelopment II, LLC 
 

a. One exemption related to the installation/application of the gypcrete flooring 
product to the floors of the building at the project site.   The exemption was 
based on the “No local labor available…” criteria.   The exempted contractor is 
Henderson Johnson.   
 

2. Andrews Terrace Community Partners LP 
 

a. One exemption related to the installation of the masonry restoration – painting 
of balcony railings, lintels and the operation of the hydro mobile masonry 
scaffolds, and application of special coatings at the project site in Rochester.  The 
exemption was based on the “No local labor available…” criteria.   The exempted 
contractor is R.E. Kelley Inc.  
 

3. Jay’s Acquisitions II LLC 
 

a. One exemption related to the installation and use of the transport platform to 
provide vertical transportation of labor and materials at the project site in 
Rochester.  The exemption was based on the “No local labor available…” criteria.   
The exempted contractors is Arsenal Scaffold, Inc. 
 

4. fairlife, LLC – Waiver was denied 
 

a. One exemption related to the roof installation at the facility site in Webster.  The 
exemption was submitted based on warranty.  It was determined that there was 
insufficient evidence to grant the waiver based on warranty.   



 
5.  1733 Ridge Road, LLC 

 
a. One exemption related to the tile replacement work at the project site in 

Irondequoit.  The exemption was based on the “Significant Cost Differentials…” 
criteria.   The exempted contractor is Neal Kaufman. 

 

 

 



COMIDA
Statement of Financial Position
 
 Year To Date Year Ending
 08/31/2024 12/31/2023
 Actual Actual

  Assets     
    Current Assets         
      Cash and Cash Equivalents 520,700 5,637,860
      Cash - Grant Funding 7,075,512 0
      Accounts Receivable, Net 74,067 151,709
      Short Term Investments 16,031,855 12,349,432
      Prepaid Expenses 10,747 19,901
    Total Current Assets 23,712,881 18,158,902
    Long-term Assets         
      Property & Equipment 629,039 625,000
      Other Long-term Assets 260,511 260,511
    Total Long-term Assets 889,550 885,511
  Total Assets 24,602,431 19,044,413

  Liabilities and Net Assets     
    Liabilities         
      Short-term Liabilities             
        Accounts Payable 35,192 143,283
        Accrued Liabilities 522,322 584,239
        Grant Liabilities 7,075,512 0
      Total Short-term Liabilities 7,633,026 727,522
      Long Term Liabilities 335,927 335,926
    Total Liabilities 7,968,953 1,063,448
    Net Assets         
      Net Assets 17,980,964 15,098,946
      Change In Net Assets (1,347,486) 2,882,019
    Total Net Assets 16,633,478 17,980,965
  Total Liabilities and Net Assets 24,602,431 19,044,413

 
Summary Statement of Activities - All Funds with Prior Year

 Year To Date Year To Date Prior Year To Date
 08/31/2024 08/31/2024 08/31/2023
 Actual Budget Actual

  Revenue       
    Fee Income 513,825 1,666,667 353,240
    Interest Income 478,611 233,333 165,850
  Total Revenue 992,436 1,900,000 519,090
 
  Payroll 267,367 238,667 193,640
  Program & Community Development 1,582,014 2,291,682 972,831
  General & Administrative 490,540 460,667 451,558
  Total Expenses 2,339,922 2,991,015 1,618,029
  Change In Net Assets (1,347,486) (1,091,015) (1,098,939)



 

 
 

 
ASSIGNMENT/ASSUMPTION SUMMARY 

 
 

DATE: September 17, 2024 
  
APPLICANT: Assignor: 

20 Fairwood Road Associates, LLC  
333 South Wabash Avenue, Suite 2700 
Chicago, IL 60604 
 
Assignee: 
The Collegiate Rochester, LLC 
222 Bloomingdale Road, Suite 40 
White Plains, NY 10605 

  
PROJECT  LOCATION: 4000 East River Road 

Rochester, NY 14623  
  
ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: August 21, 2018 
  
MODIFICATION REQUEST: 

 
The Collegiate Rochester, LLC has entered into an 
agreement to purchase the student housing project at 4000 
River Road in the Town of Henrietta and is requesting 
approval to assume the Shelter Rent property tax 
abatement. 

   
ORIGINAL PROJECT AMOUNT: $30,018,546 

 



 

296838\4866-0207-9454\ v1 

Motion By: ________________________   
Seconded By: ________________________  
 

RESOLUTION 
(Assignment of 20 Fairwood Road Associates, LLC Project to The  Collegiate Rochester LLC) 

OSC Code 2602-24-021A 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Monroe Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency"), was held at the Agency's Offices, 50 West Main Street, Rochester, New York 14614, 
on September 17, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chair announced that among the 
purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters pertaining to a certain 
Project more particularly described below. 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF MONROE INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE "AGENCY") AUTHORIZING THE 
ASSIGNMENT BY 20 FAIRWOOD ROAD ASSOCIATES, LLC OF 
CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND DOCUMENTS (EACH AS 
DEFINED BELOW) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT 
LOCATED ON FAIRWOOD DRIVE (P/K/A 4000 EAST RIVER ROAD) 
IN THE TOWN OF HENRIETTA, NEW YORK, TO THE COLLEGIATE 
ROCHESTER LLC; AND THE EXECUTION OF RELATED 
DOCUMENTS.  

WHEREAS, by Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended and Chapter 55 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York (collectively, 
the "Act"), the Agency was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist 
with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution duly adopted on August 21, 2018, the Agency appointed 4000 
East River Road LLC, a New York limited liability company ("4000 LLC”), the true and lawful 
agent of the Agency to undertake a certain project (the "Project") consisting of: (A) the 
acquisition of a leasehold interest in an approximately 12.42-acre parcel of land located on 
Fairwood Drive (previously known as 4000 East River Road) in the Town of Henrietta, New 
York [Tax Map No.:  174.01-2-58.1] (the "Land") together with the existing 102-unit student 
housing apartment complex thereon known as Racquet Club Apartments (the "Existing 
Improvements"); (B)(i) the renovation and modernization of the Existing Improvements 
including, but not limited to, new kitchens/baths and full furnishings and (ii) the construction of 
an additional 3-story approximately 125,000 square-foot building with 81-units of additional 
student housing (the "Improvements"); and (C) the acquisition and installation therein, thereon or 
thereabout of certain machinery, equipment and related personal property (the "Equipment" and, 
together with the Land and the Improvements, the "Facility"); to serve the students of Rochester 
Institute of Technology; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency and 4000 LLC executed and delivered (i) a certain Lease 
Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2018, by and between the Agency and 4000 LLC, pursuant to 
which 4000 LLC leased the Facility to the Agency (the "Lease Agreement"), a memorandum of 
which (the "Memorandum of Lease") was recorded in the Monroe County Clerk's Office on 



 
 

2 
 
 

September 19, 2018 in Liber 12083 of Deeds, at Page 199; (ii) a certain Leaseback Agreement, 
dated as of August 1, 2018, by and between the Agency and 4000 LLC, pursuant to which the 
Agency leased the Facility back to 4000 LLC (the "Leaseback Agreement"), a memorandum of 
which was recorded in the Monroe County Clerk's Office on September 19, 2018 in Liber 12083 
of Deeds, at Page 203 (the "Memorandum of Leaseback"); and (iii) a certain Payment-In-Lieu-
Of-Tax Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2018, by and between the Agency and 4000 LLC, as 
amended by that certain First Amendment to Payment-In-Lieu-Of-Tax Agreement, dated as of 
February 1, 2020 and as further amended by that certain Amended and Restated Payment In Lieu 
Of Tax Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2023 (as amended, the "PILOT Agreement"; and, 
together with Lease Agreement and the Leaseback Agreement, the "Documents"); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Documents, the Agency provided financial assistance (the 
"Financial Assistance") to 4000 LLC in the form of (a) sales and use tax exemptions for 
purchases and rentals related to the acquisition, renovation and equipping of the Facility; (b) a 
partial mortgage recording tax exemption for financing relating to the Project; and (c) a partial 
real property tax abatement structured through the PILOT Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, 4000 LLC requested, and the Agency adopted a resolution, dated September 
19, 2019 approving the sale of the Facility and assignment of the Financial Assistance and the 
Documents to 20 Fairwood Road Associates, LLC (herein, “Assignor”); and 

WHEREAS, by Application for Assumption, dated August 27, 2024, Assignor has 
requested the Agency's approval of the sale of the Facility and assignment of the Financial 
Assistance and the Documents to The Collegiate Rochester LLC, a New York limited liability 
company (in said capacity, the "Company"); and 

WHEREAS, Assignor and the Company represent that the sale of the Facility to the 
Company will not in any way change the use of the Facility and that the Facility will continue to 
constitute a "project" as such quoted term is defined in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to adopt a resolution: (i) approving the sale of the 
Facility, (ii) approving the assignment of the Financial Assistance and the Documents to the 
Company and (iii) approving the execution of any and all documents necessary to effectuate the 
assignment of the Financial Assistance and the Documents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County of Monroe Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows: 

Section 1. The Agency hereby consents to the sale of Assignor's rights, title and 
interests in and to the Facility to the Company. 

Section 2. The Agency hereby consents to the assignment of the Financial Assistance 
and the Documents from Assignor to the Company. 

Section 3. The Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chairman or Vice Chairman of 
the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver any and all 
documents necessary to effectuate the above-described assignments and continuation of the 
Financial Assistance and the Documents with respect to the Facility. 

Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 



 
 

3 
 
 

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 
 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
     

Troy Milne     
Lisa Bolzner     
Joseph Alloco     
Rhett King     
Norman Jones     
Ann L. Burr     
 
 
 

 The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

4 
 
 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF MONROE  ) ss.: 

I, the undersigned Executive Director of the County of Monroe Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the County of 
Monroe Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), including the resolutions contained 
therein, held on September 17, 2024, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth 
therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein 
referred to. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that public notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly 
given to the public and the news media in accordance with Sections 103 and 104 of the New 
York Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law) that all members of the Agency had due notice 
of the meeting and that the meeting was in all respects duly held. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on this 17th day of September, 
2024. 

 
____________________________________ 
Ana J. Liss, Executive Director 
 





 

 
 

MODIFICATION SUMMARY – PILOT Modification 
 
 
 

DATE: September 17, 2024 
  
  
APPLICANT: The Marketplace 

1265 Scottsville Road 
Rochester, NY 14625 

  
PROJECT LOCATION: West Henrietta Road and Miracle Mile Drive 

Rochester, NY 14623 
  

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: December 17, 2013 
  

Modification Request: The Marketplace has requested that the Agency amend the 
PILOT Agreement payment schedule with respect to the 
2025 Town of Henrietta and Monroe County tax year and 
the 2024-2025 Rush-Henrietta Central School District tax 
year for all of the parcels that comprise the site.  The Town 
and School District have each granted their respective 
support of the Agency and the Marketplace to amend and 
modify the terms of the PILOT agreement.   

 
 



 

269525\4854-3852-9249\ v1 

Motion By: ________________________   
Seconded By: ________________________  
 

RESOLUTION 
(The Marketplace Project) 

A regular meeting of the County of Monroe Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency"), was held at the Agency's Offices located at 50 West Main Street, Rochester, New 
York 14614, on September 17, 2024, at 12:00 p.m. 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chair announced that among the 
purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters more particularly 
described below. 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF MONROE INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AUTHORIZING THE MODIFICATION OF THE 
EXISTING PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT, DATED AS OF 
FEBRUARY 1, 2014, BY AND BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND THE 
MARKETPLACE WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
THEREUNDER AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN 
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 

WHEREAS, by Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended and Chapter 55 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York (collectively, 
the "Act"), the Agency was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist 
with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, THE MARKETPLACE is the developer of an approximately 125.46 acres 
parcel of land (the "Land"), located in the Town of Henrietta (the "Town") leased to the 
Company by Hylan Enterprises, Inc., pursuant to a ground lease as described in a Memorandum 
of Lease recorded in the Monroe County Clerk's Office in Liber 4130 of Deeds, page 225; as 
amended by Memorandum of Lease recorded in Liber 4733 of Deeds, page 181, and a 
Memorandum of Lease recorded in Liber 4733 of Deeds, page 174, and has subleases on the 
Land with certain operating retail tenants;  

WHEREAS, the Company and the Agency executed and delivered a Lease Agreement, a 
Leaseback Agreement (the "Original Lease and Leaseback") and Payment in Lieu of Tax 
Agreement ("Original PILOT Agreement"), each dated as of February 1, 2014, by and between 
the Agency and the Company; 

WHEREAS, the Original Lease and Leaseback and the Original PILOT Agreement were 
each amended by that certain Amendment to Agreements, by and between the Agency and the 
Company, dated as of February 26, 2020 and recorded in the Monroe County Clerk's Office on 
February 28, 2020 in Liber 12316 of Deeds, at page 210, to remove from the Original PILOT 
Agreement the newly formed University of Rochester Parcel; 

 
WHEREAS, the PILOT Agreement was further modified and amended by (i) that certain 

Modification of PILOT Benefits for 2018, dated as of February 1, 2018, which amended the 
PILOT Agreement payment schedule with respect to 2018 Town and Monroe County (the 
"County") tax year and the 2018-2019 School Main Mall and Macy's PILOT payments only, (ii) 



 

 

that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits for 2019, dated as of January 1, 2019, which 
amended the PILOT Agreement payment schedule with respect to 2019 and 2020 Town and 
County tax years and the 2019-2020 School Main Mall and Macy's PILOT payments only, (iii) 
that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits to Remove Subdivided UR Parcel, dated as of 
February 26, 2020, (iv) that certain that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits for 2020, dated 
as of July 1, 2020, which amended the PILOT Agreement payment schedule with respect to the 
2021 Town and County tax year and the 2020-2021 School tax year for the Main Mall and 
Macy's PILOT payments only, (v) that certain that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits for 
2021, dated as of August 1, 2021, which amended the PILOT Agreement payment schedule with 
respect to the 2022 Town and County tax year and the 2021-2022 School tax year for the Main 
Mall and Macy's PILOT payments only, (vi) that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits for 
2022-2023, dated as of August 1, 2022, which amended the PILOT Agreement payment 
schedule with respect to the 2023 Town and County tax year and the 2022-2023 School tax year, 
(vii) that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits to Remove the Cornerstone Parcel, dated as of 
November 18, 2022, and (viii) that certain Modification of PILOT Benefits for 2023-2024, dated 
as of October 1, 2023, which amended the PILOT Agreement payment schedule with respect to 
the 2024 Town and County tax year and the 2023-2024 School tax year (as so amended and 
modified, the "PILOT Agreement"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town and the Rush-Henrietta Central School District (the "School 

District") have each granted their respective support for the Agency and the Company to further 
amend and modify the terms of the PILOT Agreement to establish payment schedules for all 
remaining tax parcels through the balance of the term of the Original PILOT Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to amend the PILOT Agreement payment schedule with 
respect to 2025 Town and County tax year and the 2024-2025 School tax year and all future tax 
years through the balance of the term of the Original PILOT Agreement. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY OF MONROE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chairman or Vice Chairman of 
the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, execute and deliver any 
and all documents necessary to modify and amend the PILOT Agreement with respect to 2025 
Town and County tax year and the 2024-2025 School tax year and all future tax years through 
the balance of the term of the Original PILOT Agreement. 
 

Section 2.   The Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chairman or Vice Chairman of 
the Agency are hereby authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency 
to do all acts and things required and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and 
documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things 
as may be necessary or, in the opinion of such Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chairman or 
Vice Chairman of the Agency acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and 
provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 3. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 
 

 



 

 

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 
 

 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
     

Troy Milne     
Lisa Bolzner     
Joseph Alloco     
Rhett King     
Norman Jones     
Ann L. Burr     
 

 
 The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
 



 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF MONROE  ) ss.: 

I, the undersigned Executive Director of the County of Monroe Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the County of 
Monroe Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), including the resolutions contained 
therein, held on September 17, 2024, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth 
therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein 
referred to. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that public notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly 
given to the public and the news media in accordance with Sections 103 and 104 of the New 
York Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law) that all members of the Agency had due notice 
of the meeting and that the meeting was in all respects duly held. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on this 17th day of September, 
2024. 

 
____________________________________ 
Ana J. Liss, Executive Director 

 

 
 
 







 

Subject: Request for Addi�onal Funding for CDL-B Third-Party Course Implementa�on 

 

The Center for Workforce Development is currently making significant progress in 

implemen�ng the recently approved third-party road test program for our CDL-B Course. As 

we work towards making this a reality, we have encountered some addi�onal expenses 

necessary to effec�vely run this program. 

 

We are kindly seeking addi�onal funds in the amount of $4,566.50 to augment the current 

allotment approved in May of this year. Specifically, we are reques�ng addi�onal funding to 

cover the following expenses: 

• Fingerprin�ng costs for Examiners: $203.50 

• Road Cones for the Skills Course: $731.50 

• Replacement cones (should the primary set become damaged, lost, etc.): $731.50 

• Skills course layout painted to DMV specifica�ons (prevailing wage): $2,250.00 

• Outdoor storage shed for the cones when not in use: $480.00 

• Outdoor Measuring Wheel: $150.00 

• Whistles: $20.00 

Total: $4,566.50 

These expenses are crucial for ensuring the success of our third-party road test site. We 

appreciate your considera�on of this request and look forward to your posi�ve response. 

 

Thank you for your con�nued support, 

Center for Workforce Development 

 







           

 
 

 
 
September 10, 2024 
 
Allison Clark 
50 W Main St Ste 8100 
Rochester, NY 14614-1293 
 
Dear Allison, 
 
As a longstanding partner of Genesee Country Village & Museum (GCV&M), 
COMIDA has played a crucial role in empowering our mission over the past seven 
years. Your unwavering support has enabled us to highlight local businesses in our 
community during the Agricultural Fair. 
 
As you know, GCV&M is the largest living history museum in New York State, 
welcoming over 90,000 visitors annually. Our mission is to enrich lives by connecting 
people with history, art, and nature through immersive experiences. The Agricultural 
Fair is a cornerstone event that celebrates our region's rich agricultural heritage while 
supporting local businesses. 
 
We're deeply grateful for COMIDA's participation in the Agricultural Fair, and your 
support has been instrumental in the event's growth and success. Last year, we 
welcomed over 4,100 visitors, and we're anticipating up to 4,300 visitors this October 5-
6, 2024. 
 
This year, we are once again inviting COMIDA to be a key sponsor with a $5,000 
contribution. As a sponsor, you'll receive: 
 
• Prime Visibility: Your logo prominently displayed on all event signage and marketing 

materials, including signs at the main entrance and inside the Farmers' Market tent. 
 
• Digital Presence: Featured placement on our website's event page (over 234,000 

annual website visitors) and mentions in our social media promotions (reaching 
50,000+ followers). 

 
• Print Recognition: Acknowledgment in our program, distributed to all attendees. 
 
• On-Site Promotion: Up to six complimentary 10x10 booths in a high-traffic area to 

showcase your support of local businesses. GCV&M will handle all coordination on 
COMIDA's behalf, including contacting and arranging for local businesses to fill the 
booths.  

 
• Community Goodwill: Recognition as a long-standing supporter of local economic 

development. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Scott M. Turner 
     Chair 
Elizabeth A. Wehle 
     President & CEO 
William L. Shaw 
     Vice-Chair 
Megan Henry Stuart 
     Vice-Chair 
Scott B. Trumbower 
     Treasurer 
Ashley E. Champion 
      Secretary 
Peter M. Greendyke 
     Immediate Past Chair 
 
William Barnecut-Kearns 
Anne Bateman, MSW, MPA 
Jennifer L. Berrios 
Robyn Brookhart 
Alisa Burns Hoy 
Matthew V. Carrigg 
Jonathan W. Chase 
David R. Ciurzynski 
Pietro Giovenco, PE 
Shirley J.A. Green, Ed.D. 
A. Thomas Hildebrandt 
Grant Holcomb III, Ph.D. 
Scott R. Ingalls 
Cynthia S. Kolko 
Mark R. Kulzer 
Joseph Schaal 
Gayle A. G. Stiles 
Christian R. Szabo 
Scott B. Trumbower 
Patricia Uttaro 
Andrew J. Villa 
 
TRUSTEES EMERITI 
Terryl S. Butwid 
Sherman Farnham, Jr. 
John L. Garrett 
Michael L. McDougall 
Clifford W. Smith, Jr., Ph.D. 
Sue S. Stewart 
Susan van der Stricht 
D.H.S. Wehle, Ph.D. 
Philip K. Wehrheim 
Janet S. Welch 
Michael R. Whelan 
 
 



           

 
Your sponsorship will directly support the Farmers' Market tent, a central feature of the fair that highlights local 
producers and artisans. This aligns perfectly with COMIDA's demonstrated commitment to community 
development and local business support. 
 
The Agricultural Fair offers visitors the chance to explore regional agricultural history, enjoy craft 
demonstrations, cooking exhibits, and livestock displays, all while supporting local farmers and businesses. It's a 
unique platform that connects our past with the present, fostering economic growth and community 
engagement. 
 
We would be honored to continue our partnership with COMIDA for this event. Your support would play a 
crucial role in enhancing the fair's impact on our community. 
 
Should you require any further information or have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out to me at 
cdimuro@gcv.org or 585-294-8267. Thank you for your consideration and your ongoing support of GCV&M 
and the Agricultural Fair. 

 
Best regards, 
  

 
 

Christine DiMuro 
Director of Membership & Sponsorship 

  

Genesee Country Village & Museum is a 501(c)(3) tax exempt charity and publicly supported organization. Donors can request financial information from GCV&M or from the NYS 
Charities Bureau Registry. Visit the New York Attorney General's website at www.charitiesnys.com, call their office at (212)416-8401, or request at 28 Liberty Street, New York, NY 10005. 



 APPLICATION 

COMIDA is proud to support workforce development initiatives to improve access to employment opportunities. 
Please fill in all information below and attach your program proposal to be considered for support. For questions 
and submissions, please email Allison Clark at AllisonClark@monroecounty.gov or call (585) 753-2006. 

Organization and/or Program Name: _____________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Name: _____________________________________ Contact Phone: ____________________ 

Contact Email: ______________________________________ Year program started: _______________

Address: ________________________________ City: ______________ State: Zip:  

Tax EIN: ____________________________  

Please attach to this page your proposal for program funding. Please note, you must address each of the 
questions below to be considered for funding 

A brief overview of your program including your program’s mission and target audience.

Who are your other community partners, if any. Please list all funding partners, collaborative partners
as well as businesses or industry groups for job placement.

How your program is directly linked to job creation in Monroe County. Are jobs available for the program
participants to be placed into upon completion of the program/training.

How you plan to measure the success of your program. Performance metrics should include success
rates, job placement rates and number of participants. If your program is new, projected metrics should
be included.

Amount of funding requested and how these dollars would be used.

A copy of the operating budget and statement of financial position (balance sheet).

Administration and operation of the organization. Please give a basic outline of how the program
organizational structure as well as staff duties, org chart and an explanation of internal controls.

Copy of your most recent audit.

Downtown Revitalization

Galin Brooks 202-570-0700

galin@rddc.org 1977

100 Chestnut St Suite 1910 Rochester NY 14604

16-1081958

Downtown Revitalization



• A brief overview of your program including your program’s mission and target audience. 

Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC) is a non-profit organization with a mission 
to drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester. For almost 50 years RDDC has worked to achieve 
this mission by promoting downtown’s assets to attract businesses and investment, while fostering 
innovative ideas to create a more vibrant and inclusive community.  

As a continuation of this work, expanded downtown revitalization programs and services will help 
to drive vitality in Rochester’s downtown core. Through extensive community engagement efforts 
over 1.5 years, top priority services areas were identified as follows:  

Marketing, Events, and Activation Services 
• Free public events to activate and enliven public spaces that serve residents and workers 

and attract visitors, driving economic vibrancy   
• Amplifying downtown through additional PR, social media, and thought leadership events  
Small Business and Livability Services 
• Support for small and local businesses downtown 
• Promotional campaigns highlighting downtown success stories and neighborhood assets 
• Recruitment of neighborhood-serving retail and promotion of available space 
• Support, encourage, and participate in projects and policies that advance livability 

 
This work prioritizes high impact projects and initiatives that support a vibrant downtown core with 
an active street life, and leverage partnerships for public space enhancements. Funding for this 
program will enhance the ability to further drive vitality that is much needed in Rochester’s 
downtown core today. 
 

• Who are your other community partners, if any. Please list all funding partners, 
collaborative partners as well as businesses or industry groups for job placement. 

RDDC is proud to work with several community partners for collaboration on and funding of 
downtown revitalization efforts including OneROC (formerly known as ROC2025), University of 
Rochester, REOC, Visit Rochester, Rochester Riverside Convention Center (RRCC), and other RDDC 
members. A full list of RDDC members can be found here: 
https://rochesterdowntown.com/membership 

 

• How your program is directly linked to job creation in Monroe County. Are jobs 
available for the program participants to be placed into upon completion of the 
program/training. 

There will be three new staff positions created to support the effective implementation of services.  
Additionally, the revitalization of downtown will support job growth through the attraction of new 
businesses and amenities, and through the growth and retention of jobs in existing businesses that 
rely on a vibrant downtown for their success. 

 

https://rochesterdowntown.com/membership


• How you plan to measure the success of your program. Performance metrics should 
include success rates, job placement rates and number of participants. If your program is 
new, projected metrics should be included. 

Key Performance Indicators to measure success will include but not be limited to staffing levels; 
visitor counts and pedestrian activity levels; number of public, outdoor events, and event attendees 
downtown; positive press for downtown businesses and other happenings; social media activity; 
volume of small businesses downtown; vacancy rates; pipeline projects; number of residents and 
workers. 

 

• Amount of funding requested and how these dollars would be used. 

We are requesting $300K for general operating support to provide programs and services that help 
to drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester. 

 

• A copy of the operating budget and statement of financial position (balance sheet). 

See attached.  

 

• Administration and operation of the organization. Please give a basic outline of how the 
program organizational structure as well as staff duties, org chart and an explanation of 
internal controls.  

Daily operations of the program will be run by existing RDDC staff and new roles to be added in 
marketing and events, small business support and economic development, and public space and 
livability.  All staff report to the President & CEO. RDDC is overseen by a Board of Directors. 

As it relates to internal controls, RDDC is subject to an annual external audit.  There are established 
procedures measured annually by an independent audit firm to ensure controls for payroll, 
payment of expense, deposits, and handing of bank statements.  Copies of these procedures are 
available upon request.     

 

• Copy of your most recent audit 

See attached.  



 

1080 Pittsford Victor Rd., #302 
Pittsford, NY 14534 

    

 
8/14/2024 

 

COMIDA Board 
Monroe County Economic Development 
50 West Main St 
Rochester, NY 14614 
 
Dear COMIDA Board Member, 
 
I am pleased to write this letter of support of funding for Downtown Revitalization put forward by 
Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC).   
 
CSD Housing is a developer and owner of multifamily housing in Downtown Rochester. It is vitally 
important to increase the quality of living and amenities to complement our housing development 
efforts. We are excited about the continued growth and vibrancy of Center City and thankful for RDDC 
leading many of those efforts.  
 
 Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC) is a non-profit organization with a mission 
to drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester and for almost fifty years has worked to achieve 
this mission by promoting downtown’s assets to attract businesses and investment, while fostering 
innovative ideas to create a more vibrant and inclusive community. 
 
The key pillars of their work- Marketing, Events, and Activation Services; and Small Business and 
Livability Services - require operating support to successfully support a revitalized downtown. 
These areas are critical to residents, workers, visitors, employers, and small and local business 
owners downtown.  This work prioritizes high impact projects and initiatives that support a vibrant 
downtown core with an active street life, and leverage partnerships for public space enhancements.  
Funding for this program will enhance the ability to further drive vitality that is much needed in 
Rochester’s downtown core today. 
 
I appreciate your consideration of this request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Whitney McClary 
 
 
Development Director 
CSD Housing LLC 
 



 

August 14, 2024 
 
COMIDA Board 
Monroe County Economic Development 
50 West Main St 
Rochester, NY 14614 
 
Dear COMIDA Board Member, 
 
I am writing on behalf of Greater Rochester Chamber of Commerce to express our strong support for the 
funding request submitted by the Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC) for Downtown 
Revitalization efforts. As an organization deeply committed to the economic vitality and growth of the 
Greater Rochester area, we recognize the crucial role that a vibrant and thriving downtown plays in the 
overall health of our region’s economy. 
 
RDDC has been a cornerstone in the revitalization of downtown Rochester for nearly fifty years. As a non-
profit organization, RDDC's mission is to drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester by promoting the 
area’s assets, attracting businesses and investments, and fostering innovative ideas to create a more vibrant 
and inclusive community. Through its dedicated work in marketing, events, and activation services, as well as 
small business and livability services, RDDC has consistently focused on making downtown Rochester a more 
attractive, inclusive, and dynamic place for everyone. 
 
The revitalization of downtown Rochester is essential not only for attracting new businesses and investments 
but also for creating an environment where current businesses can thrive. A revitalized downtown serves as 
a hub for innovation, collaboration, and cultural enrichment, which are all vital to retaining and attracting top 
talent in the region. The work being done by RDDC is pivotal in ensuring that our downtown remains a 
dynamic and attractive place for residents, visitors, and businesses alike. 
 
The support provided by COMIDA will be instrumental in enabling RDDC to continue its vital work and to 
implement high-impact projects that will contribute to a vibrant downtown core. These projects, focused on 
creating an active street life and improving public spaces, will have lasting positive effects on our community 
and will help to drive the economic vitality that is so needed in Rochester’s downtown today. 
 
Thank you for considering this request. We appreciate your continued support for initiatives that help to 
build a stronger and more vibrant Rochester. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Robert J. Duffy 
President and CEO 
 



   

 
 

 

 
 

September 5, 2024 
 
  
 
COMIDA Board 
Monroe County Economic Development 
50 West Main St 
Rochester, NY 14614 
 
Dear COMIDA Board Member, 
 
I am pleased to write this letter of support of funding for Downtown Revitalization put 
forward by Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC).   
 
The Ibero-American Development Corporation (IADC) recognizes that the vitality of 
downtown Rochester benefits all area residents and we are currently developing 
affordable housing in the downtown area to bring life to the area and to help residents 
have access to the activities that RDDC so aptly brings to the area. 
 
 Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC) is a non-profit organization 
with a mission to drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester and for almost fifty 
years has worked to achieve this mission by promoting downtown’s assets to attract 
businesses and investment, while fostering innovative ideas to create a more vibrant and 
inclusive community. 
 
The key pillars of their work- Marketing, Events, and Activation Services; and Small 

Business and Livability Services - require operating support to successfully support a 
revitalized downtown. These areas are critical to residents, workers, visitors, employers, 
and small and local business owners downtown.  This work prioritizes high impact 
projects and initiatives that support a vibrant downtown core with an active street life, 
and leverage partnerships for public space enhancements.  Funding for this program 
will enhance the ability to further drive vitality that is much needed in Rochester’s 
downtown core today. 
 
I appreciate your consideration of this request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Eugenio Marlin 
Executive Vice President 



 

 

 
August 15, 2024 
 
 
COMIDA Board 
Monroe County Economic Development 
50 West Main St 
Rochester, NY 14614 
 
Dear COMIDA Board Member, 
 
The Rochester Educational Opportunity Center (REOC) is pleased to provide this letter of 
support of funding for Downtown Revitalization put forward by Rochester Downtown 
Development Corporation (RDDC). REOC knows that RDDC is a non-profit organization with a 
mission to drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester, and for almost fifty years RDDC has 
worked to achieve this mission by promoting downtown’s assets to attract businesses and 
investment, while fostering innovative ideas to create a more vibrant and inclusive community. 
RDDC’s Downtown Revitalization supports the mission of the REOC. REOC’s professional 
connection to RDDC fosters a partnership of information sharing and community that 
understands that the revitalization of the area facilitates jobs, business growth, and increased 
living opportunities for residents in Rochester and surrounding areas.  
 
REOC is one of the many educational enterprises through the SUNY University Center for 
Academic and Workforce Development’s learning system, and delivers comprehensive, 
community-based, academic and workforce development programs for adults 18 years of age 
and older. REOC’s programs and support services lead to enhanced employment opportunities, 
access to further education, and personal growth and development. REOC’s graduates are 
essential to the economic growth of the community; and with over a 55-year history of 
approximately 33,000 graduates who contribute to the economy of the community, revitalization 
efforts are crucial.  
 
The key pillars of RDDC’s work - Marketing, Events, Activation Services, and Small Business 
and Livability Services - require operating support to successfully support a revitalized 
downtown. These areas are critical to residents, workers, visitors, employers, and small and local 
business owners downtown. This work prioritizes high impact projects and initiatives that 
support a vibrant downtown core with an active street life, and leverage partnerships for public 
space enhancements. Funding for this program will enhance the ability to further drive vitality 
that is much needed in Rochester’s downtown core today. 
 
 



 

 

If there are any questions, please contact me at 585-327-4069 or rmareus@brockport.edu. I 
appreciate your consideration of this request. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dr. Roosevelt Mareus 
Dean/Executive Director 

mailto:rmareus@brockport.edu


        
  265 North Clinton Avenue   
 Rochester, N.Y. 14605-1857 
  
 P (585) 325-6530 
 F (585) 325-4864 
 E-m www.ulr.org 
 ____________________________ 
  

 President & Chief Executive Officer 
 DR. SEANELLE HAWKINS 
    
  
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 Chairperson 
 DR. CALVIN GANTT 
 

 Vice-Chairpersons 
 GREGORY EWING 
 DR. SIM COVINGTON 
 

 Treasurer 
 KEITH CLEARY 
 

 Assistant Treasurer 
 ASHLEY FREEMAN  
  

 Corresponding Secretary 
 DERRILL BLUE 
 

 Chairperson, Nominating Committee 
 ASHLEY FREEMAN 
  

 Chairperson, HR Committee 
 TALETHEA BEST 
  

 Chairperson, MF&C Committee 
 DENISHEA ORTIZ 
 

 Chairperson, PPR&E Committee 
 JOHN RAMERMAN 
 
 

 Officer-at-Large 
 EMERSON FULLWOOD 
 

 Officer-at-Large 
 ESSIE CALHOUN-MCDAVID   ____________________________   

 Erica Toluhi 
 Garfield Ruddock 
 George Opira 
 Jerdine Johnson 
 Joseph Searles 
 Kara Roth 
 Leah Hamilton 
 Mallory Smith 
 Raymond Sykes 
 Salomon Madera 
 Septimus Scott 
 Sheri Watkins 
 Sherry Mitchell 
 Stuart Mitchell 
 Taelor Jackson 
 Tashanda Thomas 
 ____________________________  

 
 
 
 
 

\ 
 

 
 
 
 
 

An Affiliate of the National Urban League, Inc. • Member Agency of the United Way of Greater Rochester 
An Equal Opportunity Employer • Contributions to the Urban League of Rochester are tax deductible 

Urban League of Empowering Communities. 
Rochester, N.Y., Inc. Changing Lives. 
 

September 6, 2024 
 
COMIDA Board 
Monroe County Economic Development 
50 West Main St 
Rochester, NY 14614 
 
Dear COMIDA Board Member, 
 
I am pleased to write this letter of support of funding for Downtown Revitalization put forward by 
Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC).   
 
The Urban League’s mission is to enable African Americans, Latinos, and other disadvantaged individuals 
to secure economic self-reliance, parity and power, and civil rights. We are an affiliate of the National 
Urban League, a leading civil rights organization. The agency directly serves over 6,000 individuals per 
year and operates more than 25 programs in the areas of Youth Education and Development, Workforce 
Development, Family and Children Services, Entrepreneurship and Wealth Building, Housing Services, 
Services for Individuals with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities, Economic Development, and 
Equity and Advocacy. Our main office is located on North Clinton Avenue in downtown near the railway 
and bus stations, and we have two additional sites in the area. 
 
The vitality of the downtown is critical to ensuring that the neighborhood where the Urban League of 
Rochester operates provides a welcoming, safe, and inclusive environment for the individuals who come 
to our offices daily to engage with our programs and for our staff. Furthermore, a revitalized downtown 
supports the overall wellbeing of the city and its residents supporting more economic opportunities for 
residents through small businesses and employment opportunities and better quality of life for those who 
live in or come to the area.  
 
Rochester Downtown Development Corporation (RDDC) is a non-profit organization with a mission to 
drive economic vitality in downtown Rochester and for almost fifty years has worked to achieve this 
mission by promoting downtown’s assets to attract businesses and investment, while fostering innovative 
ideas to create a more vibrant and inclusive community. 
 
The key pillars of their work- Marketing, Events, and Activation Services; and Small Business and 
Livability Services - require operating support to successfully support a revitalized downtown. These areas 
are critical to residents, workers, visitors, employers, and small and local business owners downtown.  This 
work prioritizes high impact projects and initiatives that support a vibrant downtown core with an active 
street life, and leverage partnerships for public space enhancements.  Funding for this program will enhance 
the ability to further drive vitality that is much needed in Rochester’s downtown core today. 
 
I appreciate your consideration of this request.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Dr. Seanelle Hawkins 
President and CEO 



WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

COMIDA is proud to support workforce development initiatives to improve access to employment opportunities. 
Please fill in all information below and attach your program proposal to be considered for support. For questions 
and submissions, please email Allison Clark at AllisonClark@monroecounty.gov or call (585) 753-2006.

Organization and/or Program Name: _____________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________

Contact Name: _____________________________________ Contact Phone: ____________________

Contact Email: ______________________________________ Year program started: _______________

Address: ________________________________ City: ______________ State: Zip: 

Tax EIN:  ____________________________  

Please attach to this page your proposal for program funding. Please note, you must address each of the 
questions below to be considered for funding

A brief overview of your program including your program’s mission and target audience.

Who are your other community partners, if any. Please list all funding partners, collaborative partners
as well as businesses or industry groups for job placement.

How your program is directly linked to job creation in Monroe County. Are jobs available for the program
participants to be placed into upon completion of the program/training.

How you plan to measure the success of your program. Performance metrics should include success
rates, job placement rates and number of participants. If your program is new, projected metrics should
be included.

Amount of funding requested and how these dollars would be used.

A copy of the operating budget and statement of financial position (balance sheet).

Administration and operation of the organization. Please give a basic outline of how the program
organizational structure as well as staff duties, org chart and an explanation of internal controls.

Copy of your most recent audit.

Monroe Community College - MPower

James Gertner 585-685-6232

jgertner1@monroecc.edu 2017

1000 E. Henrietta Rd. Rochester NY 14623

16-0849590

Monroe Community College - MPower





















































Anna Vulaj Fitzsimmons
Program Director, MCFL APEX Accelerator
NAPEX Region 2 Director – NY, NJ & DE
avulaj@monroecounty.gov
585‐753‐2017
www.mcflapex.org

APEX Accelerator Program Update





Where We Are

3



UNCLASSIFIED

Providing Government Contract Counseling through…

Contract Assistance
• One‐on‐one counseling*

Government Market Strategy
• Research
• Build a roadmap

Training & Networking
• Workshops/Webinars 
• G2B Matchmakers / Outreach 

*Must complete application for free services.

Counseling

Assess
• Business potential to do 

business with the 
government

Assist
• Federal & state registrations 

& certifications
• Identify subcontracting 

opportunities
• Solicitation/bid 

preparation/SBIRs/STTRs
• Post‐award performance

Clarify
• Government Regulations 
• Technical Information 
• Specifications & Standards

Guide
• Government 

markets/government 
marketing roadmap

• Notice of upcoming 
opportunities “Bid Match” 
service

Counseling

Assess
• Business potential to do 

business with the 
government

Assist
• Federal & state registrations 

& certifications
• Identify subcontracting 

opportunities
• Solicitation/bid 

preparation/SBIRs/STTRs
• Post‐award performance

Clarify
• Government Regulations 
• Technical Information 
• Specifications & Standards

Guide
• Government 

markets/government 
marketing roadmap

• Notice of upcoming 
opportunities “Bid Match” 
service

How We Help… 



UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

How We Help… 

Government Agencies
Outreach to small businesses
 Identify potential vendors to meet contracting goals
 Partner for innovative acquisition strategies 

Large Prime Contractors
 Prepare subcontracting plans
 Identify qualified small business subcontractors



Types of 
Registrations

Most registrations are mandated by law in 
order to do business with the government.

Federal/
Military

‐ SAM 
‐ CMMC
‐ DIBBS 
‐ GSA
‐ ITAR
‐ JCP
‐ SBA Dynamic
‐ WAWF 

NY State

‐ NYS 
Contract 
Reporter

‐ NYS 
Contract 
System

Primes & 
Agencies 
(federal, state  

and local)

‐ Vendor 
Registrations

Types of 
Certifications

Certifications are optional, governed by law 
and based on qualifications.

Federal

‐ SBA:  8(a), 
HUBZone
ED/WOSB, 
SDVOSB

‐ DOT DBE 
‐ Self‐certs

NY State

‐ MBE
‐ WBE
‐ SDVOB

Local

‐ MBE
‐ WBE



UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

MCFL APEX Stats – MONROE County Only 

Small Business Contracts Awarded

FY 
’22

09/01/22 – 08/31/23

FY
’23

09/01/23 – 03/31/24
Note: 7 mos. year

FY ’24 (In Progress) 
(04/01/24 – 03/31/25)
04/01/24 – Current

Contract $’s  reported 
by clients (millions) 

$69.03

(Monroe County:
82.92% of all contract 

awards reported)

$85.72

(Monroe County: 
85.07% of all contract 

awards reported)

$140.26

(Monroe County: 
76.24% of all contract 
awards reported)

*Estimated # of Jobs
Impacted: Retained or 

Created 

1,466 1,821 2,980

*Per DLA Calculations



UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

MCFL APEX Stats – 11 Counties

Small Business Contracts Awarded

FY 
’22

09/01/22 – 08/31/23

FY
’23

09/01/23 – 03/31/24
Note: 7 mos. year

FY ’24  (In‐Progress)
(04/01/24 – 03/31/25)
04/01/24 – Current

Contract $’s  reported by 
clients (millions) 

$83.25

(Monroe County:
82.92% of all contract 

awards reported)

$100.76

(Monroe County: 85.07% 
of all contract awards 

reported)

$183.97

(Monroe County: 
76.24% of all contract 
awards reported)

*Estimated # of Jobs 
Impacted: Retained or 

Created 

1769 2141 3909

*Per DLA Calculations



UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

September 1, 2023 – March 31, 2024
Monroe County Business Impact

Counseling and Training to Small Businesses in Monroe County:  2,624

Training Events – 09/01/2023 0 03/31/2024 # of Participants
3/29/2024 Maximizing Government Contracting Certifications for Women‐Owned Businesses 38
3/22/2024 MCFL APEX Webinar ‐ How to Become a MAS Contractor with GSA 43
2/29/2024 Maximizing Innovation Opportunities: The Many Roads to SBIR/STTR Funding 154
2/28/2024 GovCon 101 65
2/23/2024 MCFL APEX 4th Friday Webinar ‐ SBA 8(a) Business Development Program 46
2/12/2024 DCAA Bootcamp Intro into DCAA 222
1/25/2024 DoD & SBA Mentor Protégé Webinar 311
1/25/2024 UNY Supplier Diversity Summit 350
1/8/2024 DCAA Bootcamp Breaking into GovCon 40
12/13/2023Amazon: Greater Rochester Area Supplier Diversity Virtual Event  324
12/5/2023 Tri‐State APEX Mega Match Maker 650
10/27/2023October 4th Friday‐ Becoming SAM Savvy 42
10/3/2023 3rd Annual Congressman Morelle Government Contracting Forum & Matchmaker    261
9/22/2023 Capabilities Statement Bootcamp 22
9/15/2023 Webinar Training ‐ How to Prepare for a Matchmaker 37
9/8/2023 SCORE Counselor Presentation 19

9



UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

April 1, 2024 – Current
Monroe County Business Impact

Counseling and Training to Small Businesses in Monroe County:   2,143

Training Events – FY24 (04/01/24 – 03/31/24) # of Participants
• 9/16/2024 Congressman Morelle & County Executive Bello  Defense & Government Forum and Matchmaker 343
• 9/10/2024 Doing Business with Lockheed Martin 00032 226
• 8/27/2024 Upstate Navy Week 32
• 8/15/2024 Upstate Defense Microelectronics Forum 68
• 8/8/2024 How to Prepare for a Matchmaker 11
• 7/31/2024 Luminate: Government Contracting with APEX and L3Harris Technologies 15
• 7/9/2024 Luminate 2024 Government Registrations and Certifications MCFL APEX Training 9
• 6/26/2024 APEX Presentation at Fort Drum Mission & Installation Contracting Command 37
• 6/18/2024 2024 MWBE Regional Opportunities Expo Series  253
• 6/6/2024 MCFL APEX Defense and Government Contracting Roundtable Series: FTZ, ITAR and EAR 19
• 5/31/2024 MCFL APEX 4th Friday: You've Attended a Matchmaker Now What? 19
• 5/22/2024 Understanding How to Respond to a Government Solicitation ‐ Part 1 29
• 5/15/2024 DoD Northeast Regional Council Training & Matchmaker 216
• 5/9/2024  Doing Business with the Government ‐ City of Rochester Upstate NY MWBE Conference Training Component 43
• 5/8/2024 City of Rochester Upstate MWBE Conference 240
• 5/1/2024 2024 SBA Buffalo District Small Business Matchmaker 170
• 5/1/2024 DCAA Training – Cost Reimbursable Requirements Series – Part 1 56
• 4/30/2024   2nd Annual Monroe County Small Business Resource Fair 83
• 4/26/2024    4th Friday Webinar ‐ Fueling Future Innovations: Exploring FuzeHub's Innovation Initiatives 36
• 4/22/2024    Finger Lakes Science and Tech Showcase/UR CEIS 160
• 4/11/2024    Government Contracting 101‐ Be Prepared! Live Workshop featuring Government & Industry Partners 48
• 4/04/2024 How to Prepare for a Matchmaker ‐ SBA Buffalo District Matchmaker 30

10





UNCLASSIFIED

Questions?

Thank you for your continued support!



Year To Date Prior Year End Year To Date Prior Year End Year To Date Prior Year End Year To Date Prior Year End

16 30 10 12 9 12 $198,442,948 $1,151,621,436

Year To Date Prior Year End Year To Date Prior Year End Year To Date Prior Year End Year To Date Prior Year End

16 27 803 321 471 494 157 119

2024 Projects 
YTD

2023 Projects 
YE

2024 Projects 
YTD

2023 Projects 
YE

2024 Projects 
YTD

2023 Projects 
YE

$1,364,963 $10,158,340 $330,106 $5,654,943 $1,034,857 $4,503,397

2024 YTD 2023 YE 2024 YTD 2023 YE 2024 YTD 2023 YE

$51,382 $1,774,162 $1,725,000 $2,970,000 $835,479 $1,304,162

Fees Approved 
to Date

Fees Collected 
to Date

Allocated to 
Date Balance

$75,000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

*Required jobs are calculated as 10% of the existing jobs, with a minimum of 1 job. Enhanced JobsPlus is 100 jobs with a minimum of $15,000,000 
investment. There is no job creation requirement for projects that only receive sales tax exemptions.

Incentives Summary

Jobs Summary

New Jobs Required*

Fees for Approved Projects (includes all app and agency fees)

Total Paid to Date Outstanding

Number of Total Projects

Allocated Fee income Committed Funds Fund Balance

Workforce Development Fund
Beginning Balance $2,500,000

Existing Jobs Retained per 
Application

New Jobs Projected by 
Applicant

Solar WD Fund

September 2024

Dashboard

Total Company InvestmentSales Tax Exemptions
Mortgage Recording Tax 

Exemption PILOTS


	COMIDA September Agenda
	Board Minutes 08-20-2024
	Monthly COMIDA Report - 08 August 2024
	09 COMIDA - Board Meeting Sept 24
	COMIDA 08 August 2024 Reports
	1 Assumption Modification Summary Page
	3 2024 Resolution (Assignment & Assumption) (20 Fairwood to The Collegiate)
	4 The collegiate assumption form
	1 Marketplace Mall Modification Summary Page - PILOT Amendment
	3 2024 Resolution (Modifying PILOT) (Marketplace)
	4 COMIDArequestMPM8.29.24
	Request for Additional Funds_September 2024
	Adjusted Budget

	letter
	COMIDA Support 2024 9-10-2024
	Program Support Application Downtown Revitalization Cover Sheet
	Downtown Revitalization COMIDA App 9.24
	CSDH Support Letter
	RDDC  Chamber COMIDA LOS 8.14.24
	RDDC Ibero LOS
	RDDC REOC Letter of Support
	SIGNED RDDC Downtown Reviatilzation Ltr-ULR
	265 North Clinton Avenue
	Rochester, N.Y. 14605-1857
	P (585) 325-6530
	F (585) 325-4864
	E-m www.ulr.org
	____________________________
	President & Chief Executive Officer
	DR. SEANELLE HAWKINS
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Chairperson
	Dr. Calvin Gantt
	Vice-Chairpersons
	gregory ewing
	dr. sim covington
	Treasurer
	KEITH CLEARY
	Assistant Treasurer
	ASHLEY FREEMAN
	Corresponding Secretary
	DERRILL BLUE
	Chairperson, Nominating Committee
	Chairperson, HR Committee
	Chairperson, MF&C Committee
	Chairperson, PPR&E Committee
	Officer-at-Large
	Officer-at-Large
	ESSIE CALHOUN-MCDAVID
	____________________________
	Erica Toluhi
	Garfield Ruddock
	George Opira
	Jerdine Johnson
	Joseph Searles
	Kara Roth
	Leah Hamilton
	Mallory Smith
	Raymond Sykes
	Septimus Scott
	Sheri Watkins
	Sherry Mitchell
	Stuart Mitchell
	Taelor Jackson
	Tashanda Thomas
	____________________________

	combined for packet
	2024 September_COMIDA_ APEX Update
	09 September 2024 Dashboard
	Dashboard




